HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 22, 2010
1:38 p. m

1: 38: 33 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 1:38 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT
Representati ve M ke Hawker, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Vice-Chair
Representative Allan Austerman
Representative M ke Doogan

Representative Anna Faircl ough
Representati ve Neal Foster

Representative Les Gara

Representative M ke Kelly

Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
ALSO PRESENT

James Arnstrong, Staff, Co-Chair Stoltze; Karen Rehfeld,
Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget, Ofice of the
Gover nor; Leslie Houst on, Director, Di vi si on of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnent of Corrections; Dan
Spencer, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Department  of Public Safety; Frank Richards, Deputy
Comm ssioner, Hi ghways & Public Facilities, Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities; Laura Baker, Director,
Di vi si on of Adm ni strative Servi ces, Depar t ment of
Transportation

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE
Susan Col li gan, Director, Division of Admnistrative

Services, Mlitary and Veterans Affairs; Chris Christensen,
Deputy Adm nistrative Director, Al aska Court System

SUMVARY
HB 325 APPROP: DEFERRED MAI NTENANCE/ REPLACEMENT
HB 326 SUPPLEMENTAL/ CAPI TAL/ OTHER APPROPRI ATl ONS

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 02/22/10 1:38 P. M



1: 38: 40 PM

#hb325

#hb326

HOUSE BI LL NO. 325

"An Act nmeking capital appropriations for deferred

mai nt enance  proj ects, equi pnent repl acenent, and
energency repairs; and providing for an effective
date."

HOUSE BI LL NO._ 326

"An Act nmaking supplenental appropriations, capital
appropriations, and other appropriations; anending
appropri ations; repeal i ng appropri ati ons; maki ng
appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing for
an effective date."

1: 38: 58 PM

JAMES ARMSTRONG  STAFF, CO-CHAIR STOLTZE, explained the
handouts for the commttee (FY2010 Suppl enental Requests, HB
326, pages 1-24; Governor's FY2010 Capital Def erred
Mai nt enance Suppl enental Budget HB 325/ SB 253 Anendnents; FY
2010 Supplenental Deferred M ntenance Funding HB 325/ SB
253, pages 1-38, copies on file).

KAREN REHFELD, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDCET,
OFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR, addressed several committee concerns
about deferred projects. She defined deferred maintenance as
those itenms for renovation or repair for existing
facilities, not new construction. She added that to the
extent possible the funds should be contracted out. The
governor's goal would be to repair and renovate existing
assets and to get the funding on the street to provide jobs
in the small and md-range construction conpanies. She
continued that the proposed projects to be funded were
incorporated in the backup materials of the anmended budget
and the 38 page spreadsheet that lists the proposed projects
wi thin each departnent. She expl ained that those departnents
t hat have not had the opportunity to testify would be first.

Ms. Rehfeld began with the first handout and noted that the
Department of Fish and Game and the Departnent of Natural

Resources made specific anmendnents in the deferred
mai nt enance package. The Departnent of Fish and Gane had
ori gi nal requests that included the replacenment and

construction of housing, but these itens have been backed
out and the noney reallocated into very specific itenms. M.
Rehfeld reported that the new allocations included upgrades
and/or repairs to the Kodiak Warehouse/ Conmpound, the
Fai r banks Regional Ofice, and the Yakutat Conpound. She

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



added there were also new allocations for upgrades to the
statewide boiler and heating systens and repairs and
upgrades to statewide access parking, dr ai nage, and
st at ew de bunkhouses.

1: 45: 00 PM

Vice-Chair Thomas inquired who was liable for the
mai nt enance on the hatcheries that the Departnent of Fish
and Gane turned over to the regional nonprofits. Ms. Rehfeld
responded that she would research and provide the
information to Vice-Chair Thonas.

Representative Gara asked if these were the only changes to
deferred mai ntenance. Ms. Rehfeld agreed that these were the
only changes in the actual bill, but some of the backup had
been updat ed.

Representative Gara reiterated his earlier concern that too
much was bei ng spent on housing, the sausage nmaki ng machi ne,
and other itens. He noted that the governor renoved those
itens, but added new projects equaling the sane anount of
noney. He wondered why these new projects should be
considered by the commttee. Ms. Rehfeld responded that the
amendnents were designed to clarify that the funding
avail able would be wused for repair and renovation of
existing facilities, not for new construction or equipnent
replacenent. It was not the intention of the governor to
reduce the $100 nmillion maintenance request.

Representative Gara commented that the charge was to renove
those itens that were not priorities, not add new projects.

1:48: 51 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked Ms. Rehfeld if these requests were in
line with the governor's $100 mllion spending for the next
five years. M. Rehfeld explained that the governor's
overall goal was to put forward a |ist of projects to catch
up with the deferred maintenance on existing facilities.

Ms. Rehfeld reported that the M. MKinley Mat Plant
equi pnent replacenent from the Departnent of Natura
Resources was renoved and the noney reallocated to deferred
mai nt enance needs.

Ms. Rehfeld cited the five remaining departnent deferred
mai nt enance requests. She presented the order starting with
t he Departnent of Corrections, followed by the Departnent of
Mlitary & Veterans Affairs, the Departnment of Public
Saf ety, the Court System and the Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities. She referred to the 38
page spreadsheet handout (FY 2010 Supplenmental Deferred

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



Mai nt enance Funding SB 253/HB 325, pages 1-38, copy on
file).

1: 51: 56 PM

Representative Austerman referred to the earlier Departnent
of Natural Resources. He asked for clarification where the
del eted $190,000 allocation shows up again. M. Rehfeld
proposed to add the $190,000 to the plant material center's
def erred mai nt enance.

1: 52: 53 PM

LESLIE  HOUSTON, DI RECTOR, DVISION OF ADM NI STRATI VE
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS, referred to the
departnment's requests listed on page 5, lines 1-11. She
expl ai ned each of the eleven requested itens totaling $6.5
mllion.

Ms. Houston listed the first three itenms located at the
Anvil Muntain Correctional Center in Nome. The projects
i nclude replacing the security control station, constructing
a new utilidor and replacing the failing septic tank at the
waste water treatnent plant. The Palnmer Correctional Center
project, line 4, consists of replacing the fire punp and
fixing the sprinkler piping.

Co-Chair Stoltze interjected that line 4, Palner |ocation
shoul d read Election District 12 instead of 13.

Ms. Houston indicated that in Kenai, line 5, it was
necessary to replace the roofing system at Building #55 at
the WIdwood Correctional Center. She continued that the

Spring Creek Correctional Facility in Seward, line 6, would
anal yze the security control system and perineter security.
The Ketchikan Correctional facility, line 7 and 8, is for
anal ysi s, desi gn, and construction of the perineter
l[ighting. At the Palmer Correctional Center, line 9, the
project is to replace obsolete fire alarm panels in the
medi cal, adm nistration, warehouse and maintenance shop
bui | di ngs.

Co-Chair Stoltze nentioned that at a town neeting there was
di scussion regarding the inadequacy of the facility. He
asked if there had been any di scussion regardi ng the nedical
portion of the facility.

2: 00: 35 PM

Ms. Houston replied that there is a nmintenance upgrade
need, but it is not in the top eleven priorities this year.

Representative Gara inquired what woul d happen if the design
and installation of outside lighting, on line 7 and 8 was

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



not funded. He al so asked if there had been conpetitive bids
on the project. Ms. Huston replied that the existing system
is not energy efficient. She indicated she would have to
research the information concerning conpetitive bids.

Representative Gara addressed lines 7 and 8, again and noted
that one of reasons to utilize energy efficient lighting is
that the savings tends to pay back quickly. He inquired if
there had been an analysis to see if this project would pay
for itself quickly. M. Huston responded that the energy
efficiency will be addressed in the initial analysis and
design; the results will not be known until it has been
tried. Representative Gara asked if $50,000 has to be spent
before it can be determned if the project is worth it. M.
Hust on responded yes.

2: 03:46 PM

Representative Fairclough asked if a safe nethod was being
used to dispose of the old lightening systens. M. Huston
replied that she woul d research nethods used in other areas.
MVs. Rehfel d interjected t hat t he Depar t ment of
Transportation could give better answer.

Ms. Huston continued on Iline 10, the Hland Muntain
Correctional Center in Eagle R ver, with the request to
repl ace and expand the exterior freezer.

2: 05: 53 PM

Representative Fairclough asked if the Eagle River fence
repl acenent was on the list. M. Huston replied that the
fence was on the list, but it could not be acted upon
because of unresolved land transfers. Representative
Faircl ough asked if there was any funding for a new fence.
Ms. Huston replied no.

Representative Austerman remarked that he was still having a
problem separating capital and deferred maintenance
projects. He believed the separation needs to be cleared up
in the future.

2: 08: 52 PM

Ms. Rehfeld responded that the system upgrade replacenents
are inportant in 24 hour operations for life safety issues.
Representative Austerman argued that he believed it would be
just as inportant as a capital request.

Representative Kelly thought it was inportant to know how
determ nations are made.

2:10: 36 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



Representative Gara wunderstood the need for deferred
mai nt enance, but he wanted to know what was actually needed
and what constitutes a wish list. He requested, in witing,
nore information on lines 7 and 8. He mumintained that he had
never heard of spending $50,000 to see if a lighting upgrade
saves noney. Ms. Huston indicated she would follow up on his
inquiry.

Ms. Houston reported the final itemon the list, line 11, at
the WIldwood Correctional Facility in Kenai was to replace
the fire alarm system

Ms. Rehfeld referred to the Departnent of Correction's two
capital supplenental request itenms in HB 326. (FY 2010
Suppl emental Requests, page 10-11, Ilines 58-59, copy on
file).

M. Huston continued with the capital request of a renewa
and replacenent of the Hland Muntain Correction Center

fire alarmsystem The housing units I, I, and Il have al
experienced conplete or partial failure of the system
requiring imediate replacenent, per the state fire

marshal's office. The failure to replace the system would
require the relocation of 380 incarcerated wonen.

2:15: 02 PM

Co- Chair Hawker questioned the priority decisions. He noted
that HB 325 was supposed to be the fast track capital budget
with imrediate deferred maintenance noney for the nost
pressing projects. He asked why the freezer never rose to
the top of the priority list in a previous capital budget.
He added that the departnent was using the slower track
capital budget for an item that seened critical to the
Hi | and Mountain Correctional Center. He questioned why this
did not make the faster track budget. M. Huston replied
that it was put in the capital requests because the work is
ongoing and the capital request replaces the noney already
spent .

Co- Chair Hawker recapped the value of truth in budgeting. He
stated it would have been better to state that the noney has
been spent from another source and now needs to be repl aced.

Ms. Rehfeld contended that there are a nunber of projects
that departnents needed to nove on quickly that had not been
expected. Co-Chair Hawker reiterated that it should have
been di sclosed in the public docunent.

2:18:41 PM

Representative Gara questioned if the supplenental deferred
mai ntenance bill, HB 325, was for projects the governor
believed there was a need to be out on the street a nonth
earlier than the rest. M. Rehfeld responded that the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



governor did not propose the deferred nmai ntenance bill as an
energency bill. He wanted to get the approval of the
| egislature so that the projects could get started and the
contractors could be enployed this construction season
instead of waiting for a July 1 appropriation.

Representative Gara reiterated was HB 325 was for projects
that needed approval first for contracting issues. M.
Rehfeld noted that the governor's interest was to accelerate
the funding so that it would not have to wait until July 1
effective date in the FY 2011 capital bill. The earlier the
funding is approved, the wearlier the funding would be
available to state agencies to bid those contracts and put
peopl e to work.

Representative Gara remarked that many of the projects do
not seem |i ke energency projects. Ms. Rehfeld restated that
these projects are not energencies only deferred from the
past. These projects will nmake a difference in the long term
function of the facility. The governor wanted approval of
the funding in this current year to start this sumer.

2:22: 01 PM

Ms. Huston continued on Page 11, line 59, with the renewal
and repl acenent of the Fairbanks Correctional Center heating
system This is a new project request.

Co-Chair Stoltze voiced his concern about the early deferred
mai nt enance and asked if wearlier effective dates would
acconplish the governor's goals. Ms. Rehfeld agreed it would
neet the goals.

Co-Chair Stoltze rem nded that the end of session, April 18,
is not that far away so there could be a May 1 effective
dat e.

2:24: 50 PM

Representative Doogan voiced his concern over t he
suppl enental deferred nmmintenance bill, a supplenental
capi tal budget and the regular capital budget in the future.
He contended he was having a hard time telling the two
suppl enental docunents apart. He added it was not clear to
hi m how the projects should be rated because it |ooks |ike
two capital budgets. He asked if there is a way to tell them
apart.

Ms. Rehfeld responded that there are two bills because the
governor had initially proposed the deferred maintenance
$100 million five-year plan for FY 2011. H's goal of a
separate bill was so that it could be acted upon early to
get the funding avail able before this construction season.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



2:29: 24 PM

Representati ve Doogan appreciated her coments, but the
situation of concern was that it was hard to tell what the
nost inportant projects were to begin with. He voiced
concern that all the projects seemed to be capital projects.
He pointed out the list seened undifferentiated and there
needed to be a better way of determ ning what is inportant.

Ms. Rehfeld continued to the Departnent of Mlitary and
Veterans Affairs on page 13 of the spreadsheet. She noted
three allocations for $892,000 for Arny Guard Facilities,
$2.1 mllion for Arnory Facilities deferred maintenance, and
$1 million for the Alaska MIlitary Youth Acadeny.

2:31:45 PM

SUSAN  COLLI GAN, Dl RECTOR, DVISION OF ADM N STRATI VE
SERVI CES, M LI TARY AND VETERANS AFFAI RS (via
tel econference), reviewed the three groupings. The Arny
Guard Facilities projects were in Fairbanks, Kotzebue,
Wasilla, Nome, Ft. Richardson and Juneau. Mdst of the
projects include repair and replacenent of itenms such as
boil ers, doors, roofing, flooring and siding. The second
group, the arnories, has federal funding involved with them
and they are requesting the $2,108,000 of general funds with
a federal match of $6.3 mllion. These repair and
mai nt enance projects are located in Jewel Lake, Sitka,
Kenai, and Ft. Richardson. The final group is $1 mllion for
the Alaska MIlitary Youth Acadeny to replace insulation and
wi ndows, repair restroonms, and replace interior fire rated
doors.

2:33: 56 PM

DAN SPENCER, DI RECTOR, DI VI SION OF ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES,
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY, referred to the Departnent of
Public Safety requests, page 17, lines 1-5. He indicated the
deferred nmintenance projects at the hangers in Anchorage,
Bet hel, and Kodiak. There are also repairs and work in
Fai rbanks and Ketchi kan. The Anchorage projects consist of
repl acing the existing parking apron, leveling the floor for
safer novement of aircraft, and replacing w ndows. He
referred to needs in Fairbanks to replace the air fan and
el ectrical systens, add insulation above the ceiling and
i nprove environnmental controls. He continued that the Kodi ak
hanger has existing exterior metal rusting that needs to be
repl aced and the Ketchi kan post needs added insulation. M.
Spencer interjected that it is expensive to design projects
and have experts evaluate the departnent's facilities. He
added that he cannot go to bid w thout an appropriation and
the prospect of noving forward with the work is limted
wi t hout the reasonable expectation of receiving the noney.
There is sone liability involved if they go through the bid

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



process than not receive the funds. M. Spencer enphasized
that priority projects can change quickly as energencies
happen and what may be deferred today can becone a priority
tomorrow. He enphasized the five listed projects reflected
work that can be put out to bid imediately to start the
wor K.

2:40: 43 PM

CHRI S CHRI STENSEN, DEPUTY ADM NI STRATIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA
COURT SYSTEM (via tel econference), referred to the original
list of nine projects in need of maintenance funds (Deferred
Mai nt enance Projects List, Court, copy on file). He defined
deferred nmami ntenance as ordinary nmaintenance that has been
deferred due to lack of funding or attention beyond the
expected wuseful life of a building system or building
conponent. He noted that in the FY2011 Capital Budget |ists
non-deferred maintenance itens are for things approaching
the end of their expected useful l|ife, but have not yet
exceeded it. He indicated that the Ketchikan Court and
Ofice Building need to replace a failing manual control
system and the heating/cooling system It also needs
repl acenent of deteriorating finishes, damaged ceiling and
dim light fixtures. M. Christensen continued with the
deferred maintenance needs  of the Anchorage Boney
Cour t house.

Representati ve Doogan noted that the $5 mllion request for
deferred maintenance was for buildings not owned by the
courts. M. Christensen responded that the original request
was for $14,932,000 for buildings not owned by the courts,
but all that has been inserted is $2.5 nmillion.

Representative Doogan inquired if the Ketchikan Court
Bui l ding received the noney requested, would the courts run
the project or would it be given to sonmeone else to run. M.
Christensen replied that those projects done exclusively in
court space would be done by the courts. The rest of the
building would be a cooperative agreenment with the other
t enant s.

2:47: 07 PM

Co- Chair Hawker asked if the occupancy | eases specified who
was responsible for repair and mai ntenance. M. Christensen
replied that the courts occupy 44 buildings and own six

Most of the buildings are private |ease buildings and the
| eases specify who is responsible for maintenance. None of
the deferred mmintenance noney in the master |ist actually
goes to anything other than state owned buil dings. Co-Chair
Hawker questioned if the $14.9 nmillion was on the naster
l[ist. He queried if this does not contradict the answer to
Representative Doogan. M. Christensen clarified that none

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



of the noney is being put into buildings not owed by the
state of Al aska.

2:49: 13 PM

FRANK RI CHARDS, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, HI GHWAYS & PUBLIC
FACI LI Tl ES, DEPARTMENT OF  TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC
FACILITIES, identified page 18 as the start of the
departnent's deferred nmai ntenance needs. He stated that the
allocation to the Departnment of Transportation is $25
mllion divided into 193 projects. Sub allocations were nmade
for the wvarious deferred maintenance needs wthin the
departnment for aviation facilities, harbors, highways and
the mari ne highway. M. Richards continued that when | ooking
at the infrastructure the projects were grouped into brush
cutting, gravel repair and replacenent, signals and signs,
safety related itenms, and drainage issues. The aviation
identified needs were life safety issues, gravel surface
repairs, fencing and gates, drainage inprovenents, asphalt
repairs, electrical repairs, and vegetation managenent. The
primary needs in the marine highway system were for fire
protection and prevention, energency response, and SOLAS in
the ol der vessels. SOLAS is listed on page 21 and refers to
Safety of Life At Sea, an international safety code that
nmust be conmplied wth Dbecause the vessels transit
i nternational waters.

Co-Chair Stoltze inquired if there was a reason that the
al | ocati ons were broken down the way they were. Conm ssioner
Ri chards responded that the departnent wanted to break down
t he mai nt enance needs by i ndividual vessels.

M. Richards continued that on the marine highway, the work
efforts are contracted out. He reported that on the aviation
side, there is a conbination of contracted efforts and state
forces.

2:53: 13 PM

M. Richards noved to the facilities deferred mai ntenance on
the 700+ buildings that are the responsibility of the
Departnment of Transportation. He noted on page 27 the
prioritized 12 projects. The work wll primarily be on
el evator upgrades, roofs, heating systens repair and
repl acenent, power generation at renote facilities, and
hoi st replacenent. He remarked that the harbor maintenance
work on page 28 consisted on the inner float at Port
Al exander .

M. R chards explained that the largest need within the
departnment was on the highways. He noted that the major
areas, starting on page 28, were vegetation managenent;
gravel surfacing, asphalt surface, guard rail repair,
traffic signals and signs, bridge maintenance, and high

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



tower repairs. The focus of the departnment's efforts will be
a conbination of contracting efforts and in-house state
forces, although approximately 80 percent will be contracted
out. He added that in the rural system the benefit of an
earlier appropriation is procuring materials and get the
contracts underway to achieve a sunmmer of 2010 work product.

2:56: 11 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked for the latest spring date that an
appropriation would be effective for early contracting. M.
Richards replied March or April. Co-Chair Stoltze asked for
a follow up on a nore specific date. M. Richards reported
that the earlier the better particularly in rural areas

Representative Sal non described the Taylor H ghway near 40
Mle as one of the worst highways in the world. M. Richards
asked if he was referring to the highway just outside of
Chi cken. Representative Salnon replied the area close to 40-
mle. M. Richards referred to page 29, priority nunber 1
that lists gravel surface stabilization on the Steese,
Denali, and Taylor H ghways. Representative Salnon asked
when the area would be repaired. M. Richards responded that
it has been a challenge to maintain these areas in the past,
but he was not sure on the specific work planned for the
area, but would research and provi de an answer.

3: 00: 23 PM

Representative Fairclough asked why on page 32, line 3,
under traffic signs and signals the costs have increased
sevenf ol d. M. Ri chards responded there has been a

significant increase in alumnum sheeting and reflective
mat erials placed on the signs. One of the challenges in the
northern climates is the deterioration of sign sheeting with
the ultraviolet light. Representative Fairclough nentioned
that the price of steel has been cut in half and asked if
al um num was not falling into this sane trend. M. Richards
responded that he did not have that i nformati on.
Representati ve Fairclough asked if the departnent knew what
California was using. M. Richards responded that California
is also going to the new sheeti ng.

Representative Austerman noticed that about 80 percent of
the mari ne highway projects seened to refer to the Taku. M.
Ri chards responded that all the ships go into dry dock for
annual refurbishnment, but the Taku has significant issues
with the SOLAS.

Representati ve Austerman asked why the cracks in roads were
only attended to every four years. M. Richards responded
there are two crews, one in the peninsula district and the
Matsu district. The crack sealing effort has been deferred
to federal highway funds. Representative Austernman suggested

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



a revaluation of the funding source on how to make the roads
last | onger. M. Richards noted that the deferred
mai ntenance list refers to extensive needs for highway
repairs. Representative Austerman asked where the Kodiak
state parking lot falls in the deferred maintenance |ist.
M. Richards responded that he would have to | ook through
the lists in the regions to determ ne where it appears.

Representative Austerman interjected that he wanted to know.
M. R chards answered that if there was specific capita
budget designation for Kodiak airport parking, then it would
go to them

3: 06: 53 PM

Ms. Rehfeld noved to supplenental requests in HB 326 for the
Departnment of Transportation, page 11, Iline 61 (FY2010
Suppl enment al Requests, page 1-24, copy on file).

M. Richards referred to the FY2010 suppl enental request on
line 61 for the Al aska Mirine H ghway System Vessel and
Term nal overhaul and rehabilitation. This is necessary to
keep the vessels in conpliance with Coast Guard regul ati ons.
Co-Chair Stoltze asked if any of these was in the SOLIS
category. M. Richards replied it was for a variety of
t hi ngs including the SOLIS.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas asked if this would be the place to nake
an anendnent regarding the road ranp at the Tenekee
termnal. M. Richards suggested handling this through the
regul ar capital budget.

3:10:16 PM

Representative Doogan asked why $4 nillion nore was being
requested to work on vessels. M. Richards responded that
the level of funding appropriated |ast year was $4 nillion
shy of what is needed to keep the vessels operating.

3:11: 27 PM

M. R chards nentioned that on page 11, line 62 for the
airport inprovenment program the departnent is seeking $5.2
mllion of federal funds and $15 mllion in other funds.
Line 63 is for debt defeasance on international airports.

LAURA BAKER, DI RECTOR, DI VISION OF ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES,
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, explained that the debt
def easance is based on a recommendation from the aviation
bond council. They have an excess of receipts that can be
applied to sone of their capital bonding bal ance that woul d
reduce debt in the future.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



Representative Fairclough noted that there has been a
request for funding the volcano observatory and questioned
the anmount of noney in the international airport revenue.
Ms. Baker responded she would need to get the balance to the
commttee, but noted that funding the volcano observatory
woul d be in non conpliance to federal regulations.

3:13:45 PM

Representative Fairclough asked for the landing fees at
international airports conpared to other |anding fees across
the country. Ms. Baker stated the departnent would need to
follow up. Representative Fairclough asked if M. Baker
could guess if it was | ower or higher. Ms. Baker stated she
could not. M. Richard answered that |anding fees are | ower
than other airports in the United State. Representative
Fairclough asked if it would be fair to say the fees were
some of the lowest in the nation. M. R chards responded
t hat he was not sure.

M. Richards continued with line 64, the request for
| egi slative authority to receive and expend federal aviation
funds for GQustavus Airport for runway safety and line 65 for
t he King Cove fencing project. M. R chards noved to |ine 66
for the Kodiak Chem cal Storage building, line 67 for the
Nul atot Airport inprovenents and line 68 for the Unal aska
Chem cal Storage buil ding.

Representative Fairclough asked if these were tied in wth
other project inprovenents for |ocal airports from | ast
session's Anmerican Recovery and Reinvestnent Act (ARRA)
funding. M. Richards replied that the projects appropriated
for the ARRA funding were specific. Originally the plan was
to use airport inprovenent funds for those projects, but
since they were ready to go out to contract for bidding

authority was received from the legislature to use ARRA
funds instead. Representative Fairclough asked if this was
for some of the sane the airports receiving additional

funding. M. R chards recalled that ARRA funding went to
Anchorage, Fairbanks, Quzinkie, Akuchak, Merrill Field,
Kenai, but not Qustavus, King Cove or Unal aska.

3:17: 39 PM

Represent ati ve Doogan questioned line 62 that increases the
appropriation to $20 mllion, but line 63 wants to defeat
debt in the anpbunt of $15 mllion. He asked if these were
linked in any way. M. Baker said the $15 million could
stand al one, but the proposals were grouped as they were all
avi ation rel ated.

Representati ve Doogan asked why there was $20 million nore

in appropriation. M. Baker responded that of the $20
mllion, $15 million is the debt defeasance request to pay

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



down the bonds for previous aviation work. Representative
Doogan asked what happens to rest of noney that is not part
of the debt. M. Baker replied that the noney is direct
f eder al fundi ng recei pts com ng in for avi ation
transportation fromfederal aviation

Representati ve Doogan reiterated the question of what it
will be used for. Ms. Baker answered it was for the previous
projects that M. Richards listed. M. Richards repeated for
the Gustavus Airport runway safety, King Cove airport
fencing and Kodi ak Chem cal storage buil ding.

3:20:13 PM

Representative Gara referred to line 63 and asked if they
were raising or changing the rates and fees structure. M.
Baker responded the departnment has held back sone of the
fees being charged due to the economic situation to nake
sure air carriers still cone into the airports at Anchorage
and Fairbanks. The expenditures could be used to not pay
down the debt, but then there would be the need to increase
the fees to carriers to pay down the debt.

Representative Gara noted that it seens |ike a major policy
deci sion was being nade. He needed further information on
how this decision was made and if it is the right one. M.
Baker needed to follow wup later wth nore detailed
i nformation.

3:22:38 PM

Representative Fairclough wunderstood that this 1is not
general funds dollars, but an appropriation that the
| egi slature has control of making. The airports are |inked
together with Fairbanks as a backup | anding destination and
so the group has gotten together although there is about $15
mllion in the fund that could pay down their debt which
woul d reduce the fees. The state does not set the |anding
fees, but the board that operates this particular fund which
consists of the carriers and the state of Al aska. M.
Ri chards responded that it is the signatory carriers that
have signed onto the international operating agreenent. It
was agreed last fall that the carriers paying the rates and
fees ook to see the anmount previously collected and then
| ook for ways to reduce the future expenses, such as paying
down the bond debt.

3:24:51 PM

Represent ati ve Doogan asked how the federal funds are |inked
to this appropriation. M. Baker responded that she is not
aware that they are linked. M. R chards interjected that
they are not |inked. There is the airport inprovenent
program funded by the FAA for |lower airports. It is just

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



identified as a capital need under the appropriation |eve
on a common |line 62.

Representati ve Doogan asked if this is separate types of
nmoney, one from federal governnment and the other from air
carriers, why are lunped together on a single line. M.
Baker noted it was grouped together because it dealt wth
aviation issues. It could be separated out as it is not
linked to the federal requests.

Representative Doogan noted that if they were |inked the
noney could not be spent on airports such as Gustavus. M.
Ri chards responded that revenues collected in Anchorage and
Fai rbanks must to be spent at those two airports.

Representati ve Doogan responded that he just wanted to be
confident two kinds of noney were not being mxed. M.
Ri chard responded that the nobney was not being m xed.

3:28:30 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked how nuch noney goes from Fairbanks to
Anchorage on the airport international arrangenment. M.
Ri chards stated he would have to get back to the commttee
wi th those nunbers.

Representative Sal non noted on page 13, line 68, it states
that this is a new project request for FY2010. He asked
where these new projects cane from and why are many of them
mar ked as energencies. He wondered why the Taylor H ghway
cannot be listed under an energency item

M. Richards responded that specifically from line 65
through line 68 these are capital projects under devel opnent
phases. These projects are ready to go out to contract and
need | egislative authority to nove forward. Starting on |ine
69 through line 79, this is an area of energency repairs for
specific actions such as fromfl oods, erosion, or ice danmage
that occurred during or after the start of the fiscal year.
These needs were above and beyond the approved operating
budget .

Representati ve Sal non asked again why the Taylor H ghway is
not considered an energency. M. R chard responded that
energency repairs have not been done on the Taylor Hi ghway
that would require themto come back to the legislature to
seek suppl emental funds to cover any energency repair work.

3:32: 48 PM

Representati ve Faircl ough asked for clarification on |ine 62
for $5,257,000 and asked if inside this appropriation |eve
it was at the discretion of the departnment to nove those
funds around. M. Richards responded that they would have

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



| egislative authority if needed to nove the funds to an area
of greater need.

Representative Austerman asked for the total cost of the
Kodi ak Chemical Storage building. M. Richards replied $1.3
mllion. Representative Austerman noticed that in the
capital list fromlast year there was $1.2 mllion for the
same project. M. Richards reported that he would need to
investigate if there was previous |legislative authority that
now totals $2.5 million.

3:35:28 PM

M. Richards referenced on page 13, line 69, the $7, 356, 000
represents the projects identified starting on |ine 70.
These were activities that were undertaken because of
circunstances after the fiscal year. In particular, line 70

on high tower repairs. On line 71, the Dyea Road washout
repair was for erosion that occurred along the Taiya River
that arose suddenly. M. R chards naned other erosion
projects on the denn Hghway line 72 and line 73, as a
G enn H ghway slide and damfailure.

M. Richards listed the energency repairs needed from line
74 through 79 in Haines H ghway, Kodiak, Petersville road,
Salnmon River road, Seward airport and Whittier access
repairs. The Wiittier Access Energency should read 400, 000
cubic yards of rock instead of the 40,000 witten.

3:41:11 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze commended the crews working during
enmer gency situations.

M. Richards referred back to line 46, for the legal costs
relating to the N kishka Beach Road Case. This was entered
into with O fshore Systens Kenai for obstruction, contro

and closure of public access to and through the N kishka
Beach road.

3:42: 39 PM

M. Richards noved to line 80, for the appropriation of
$3, 021,100 for highways and facilities. On line 81 is the
Cof f man Cove Mai ntenance Station a project for a maintenance
station to maintain that part of the road.

Represent ati ve Doogan asked for the original appropriation.
M. Richard responded it was $900, 000. Representative Doogan
asked if the departnent was 100 percent off. M. Richards
responded that is correct. At the time it was believed the
land would not have to be purchased, but the present
necessary |and purchase has presented an unexpected cost.
The building cost construction was also off. Representative

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



Doogan responded that a |ot of backup would be needed to
prove the departnent was off by 100 percent.

M. Richards continued to |line 82, the Ester Wigh Station
scale replacenent and line 83, for the Kl awock Maintenance
station door replacenent. Line 84, neasurenent standards and
commercial vehicle enforcement equipnment replacenent and,
line 85, for the retroactive asphalt material price
adjustnment. M. Richards indicated that asphalt prices have
skyrocketed and this contact did not have an asphalt price
escalator. He indicated that line 86 was to purchase land in
Skagway where the Skagway mai ntenance station is situated.

Representative Salnon asked what the land on line 86 is
being used for. M. R chards responded it is where the
mai nt enance station is |ocated.

M. Richards noted on line 87 a long standing need for
el evator installation for the second floor of the Southeast
region headquarters. Co-Chair Stoltze asked where the
Sout heast regional headquarters was. M. Richards responded
in Juneau at 7 mle G acier H ghway. Representative Kelly
asked how many people work on second floor. M. Richards
responded that the majority of the enpl oyees work on second
fl oor.

3:50: 30 PM

M. Richards noted that line 88 for state equipnent fleet
vehicle lifts in Haines was a safety related issue.

Representative Fairclough queried if there are challenges in
di sposing old lightening, especially in regard to nercury,
as new bulb replacenents are wupgraded. M. Richards
responded that he will get back to her.

Representative Gara noted that he had nmet wth the
departnment on the runble strip issue in certain safety
corridors. He noted that nost head on collisions are caused
by inattentiveness. He wanted to know what it would cost to
put runble strips in nore high traffic areas than just the
hi ghway safety corridors. He noted several attenpts, w thout
success, to get an answer fromthe departnent. M. Richards
responded that $850,000 to install the shoulder runble
strips on the remaining 76.7 mles of highway eligible to
receive runble strips. There may be a need on other
hi ghways, but if there is no shoulder for the runble strip,
than it is not possible. He indicated that he would be able
to present a map where these areas can be shown.

Representative Gara asked for information outside the areas
that the Departnent of Transportation thought was inportant.
M. Richards responded that the departnent wanted to
i nvestigate those areas and chal | enges.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



3:55:52 PM

Representative Austerman expressed his curiosity regarding
t he purchase of for $900,000 in Coffman Cove and the Skagway
| and purchase. He asked if the noney just covered the |and.
M. Richards responded no. He was not sure of the actua
acreage, but the land would be used for the nmaintenance
center and ot her storage.

M. Richards noved to |line 89, for the regulatory conpliance
appropriation level of $1.7 mllion and line 90, for the
Kenai Peninsula Watershed |Inprovenents Cean Water Act
Settlenent. The departnent is seeking $900,000 for a non-
profit to purchase and place conservation easenents over
properties that wll preserve water quality and salnon
habitat. Co-Chair Stoltze asked the name of the non-profit.
M. Richards remarked that he was not sure, but would get
the information. He continued wth line 91 and the re-
vegetation of  Anchor River and Deep Creek Hi ghway
Enbanknments along three sites on the Sterling H ghway.

3:59: 23 PM

Vi ce-Chair Thomas asked about the 19 mle slide area and
wondered if the EPA was preventing anything from being if
the river was doing naturally. M. R chards replied that
when a natural occurrence of water and debris flows down
drainage, it is considered a natural occurrence. Wen a nan-
made object is put there to stop it, then this is an
unnat ural occurrence that can be noved off site.

4:00: 53 PM

Ms. Rehfeld concluded that this covered the remaining
agencies that were not able to present at the |last neeting.
#

ADJ OQURNNMENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:01 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 02/ 22/ 10 1:38 P. M



